

Trust Pay Policy

Consulted on with recognised trade unions November 2022 to March 2023 Adopted by the Trust following consultation process on 7th March 2023

To be reviewed September 2023

Contents

Table of Contents

1. Policy	
1.1 Introduction	. 2
1.2 Aims	. 2
1.3 Principles	. 2
1.4 Timing of Salary Determination and Notification	.4
1.5 Basic Pay Determination on Appointment	.4
1.5.1 Headteachers/Heads of School	. 5
1.5.2 Deputy and assistant head teachers	. 5
1.6 Pay Increases	. 5
1.7 Annual Appraisal/Performance Management	. 6
1.8 Early Career Teachers	. 6
2. Pay Progression	
2.1.2 Employees who are on maternity leave	. 8
2.1.3 Upper Pay Range	
2.2 Appeals	. 8
3. Movement to Upper Pay Range	10
4. Additional Payments/Responsibilities	
4.1 Teaching and Learning Responsibility Payments (TLRs)	11
4.1.1 Criteria for the award of a TLR 2	12
4.1.2 Criteria for the award of TLR 3	12
4.2 SEN Allowance	12
4.3 Recruitment and Retention payments	13
4.4 Employee benefits and methods of recognition	13
5.Legislative Framework	13
6.Definitions	14
Appendix 1 DSAT Performance Pay Process	15
Appendix 2 – Pay Ranges Including Reference Points from 1 st September 2022	16

Section 1 POLICY

1.1 Introduction

This policy sets out the framework for making pay decisions within the Diocese of Sheffield Academies Trust (DSAT) and the pay appeals process. This policy complies with our funding agreement and articles of association.

The School Teacher's Pay and Conditions Document (STPCD) requires schools to have a pay policy which sets out the basis on which they will determine teacher's pay. The Trust follows the principles of the STPCD. Academies can set their own conditions for new staff, however DSAT continues to refer to the STPCD. The provisions of the STPCD also apply to our staff in academies who had their employment transferred at the point of conversion.

Pay decisions relating to Executives within the Trust are made in accordance with the Trust Executive Performance Management and Pay Policy.

1.2 Aims

The Trust will manage pay decisions in a fair, transparent and responsible way, having regard to relevant legislation and equal pay principles, and in line with the Scheme of Delegation.

DSAT aims to use pay and reward effectively to:

- Maximise the quality of teaching and learning at the school.
- Support the recruitment and retention of a high quality, skilled and flexible workforce.
- Enable our academies to recognise and reward teachers and leaders appropriately for their contribution to the school
- Determine the annual pay budget.

1.3 Principles

- All teachers and leaders are paid in accordance with the statutory provisions of the School Teachers' Pay and Conditions Document (STPCD).
- Support staff are paid in accordance with National and Local Conditions of Service for Support Staff.

- All pay related decisions will be taken in compliance with relevant legislation and employment law.
- Pay decisions at this school are made by and overseen by the Trust's Executive Leaders. The Trust shall be responsible for the establishment and review of the Pay policy in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation.
- The Executive Headteacher/Headteacher is responsible for the effective performance management of all staff and shall make recommendations regarding teachers' pay to the Trust Executive.
- Annual pay progression within main pay salary ranges will be automatic and not linked to performance (Except in cases of formal capability. Where an employee has been engaged on a support plan in year but has made the required progress they will progress). The Trust expects all employees to perform in line with their specific job roles and against national standards where applicable; including Teachers Standards (and Headteacher Standards in the case of Executive Headteachers/Headteachers and Head of Schools).
- Employees who are already receiving pay at the top of their pay range will remain at that level. It will be expected that they will continue to meet the professional standards and DSAT career stage expectations at that level.
- The Trust Review panel (made up of Trust Executive Leaders) will scrutinise and have final oversight of Teaching and Learning Responsibilities (TLRs) and movement to the Upper Pay Range (UPS) in accordance with strategic intent. DSAT will always look to support local recommendations with full regard to the legal framework and diversity policy, whilst ensuring consistency across the Trust.
- The Trust Review Panel will ensure the school is mindful of the local context and impact of pay decisions on other schools within DSAT
- The Local School Board will ensure that the policy is implemented appropriately and within required time-scales.
- Where an employee has transferred into the Trust and has enhanced terms that are subject to TUPE then the enhanced terms will continue to apply.
- The pay policy will be made available to staff annually before their annual performance management review.

1.4 Timing of Salary Determination and Notification

- Executive Headteacher/Headteacher's pay decisions will be made by 31 December each year. This decision is undertaken by the Trust.
- Teachers' pay decisions (for new TLRs and UPS threshold applications) will be made by 31 October each year with effect from 1st September. This decision is recommended by the Executive Headteacher/Headteacher to the local Board with oversight by the Trust (see Appendix 1 flowchart).
- Decisions on Upper Pay Range applications will be made within 30 working days of the closing date for applications (subject to Trust approval)
- Reviews may take place at other times to reflect any changes in circumstances which may change the basis of how someone's pay is calculated.
- Where a pay determination leads to the start of a period of salary safeguarding, the Trust will give the required notification no later than one month after the date of the determination.

1.5 Basic Pay Determination on Appointment

The Executive Headteacher/Head will determine the appropriate pay range(s) for any vacancy prior to advertising it, in consultation with the Local School Board and the Trust People Director. For leadership posts this is done so in collaboration with the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and the People Director. On appointment, the panel will determine the appropriate starting salary within that range to be offered to the successful candidate. In some circumstances the Executive Headteacher/Headteacher may increase a salary range for an exceptional candidate. Where this is likely it will be clearly stated in the advertisement and approved by the Trust. There is no assumption that a Leader/Teacher will be paid at the same rate as they were being paid in a previous school however DSAT follows the principles of pay portability in the majority of cases.

In making pay determinations, the Trust may take into account a range of factors, including

- The nature of the post
- The level of qualifications, skills and experience required
- The wider school context e.g. challenges, complexities and circumstances of the school
- Market conditions e.g. ability to recruit

- Additional accountabilities
- Long term provision of services to other schools
- Candidate specific factors e.g. opportunity for pay progression and previous experiences
- Level of disadvantage, e.g. number of free school meals, pupil premium
- Proven experience in other contexts

1.5.1 Headteachers/Heads of School

Decisions on setting or amending pay ranges for Headteachers and Heads of School will be taken in accordance with the principles of the STPCD considering the school's size (Group) and Individual School Range (ISR) alongside the DSAT Growth Strategy, SEF and DEP. These pay ranges will be within the Leadership Pay Range, see appendix 2.

The Trust will determine the pay range for Headteacher/Head of School when they propose to make a new appointment, or at any time if they consider this necessary to reflect a permanent and significant change in the responsibilities of the post.

1.5.2 Deputy and assistant head teachers

Decisions on setting or amending pay ranges for Deputy and Assistant Heads will be taken in accordance with the relevant paragraphs of the current STPCD which deal with the determination of the pay ranges for those staff and taking into account the DSAT Growth Strategy, SEF and DEP. These pay ranges will be within the Leadership Pay Range, see appendix 3.

The Trust will determine the pay range for a deputy or assistant head teacher when they propose to make a new appointment, or at any time if they consider this necessary to reflect a permanent and significant change in the responsibilities of the post.

1.6 Pay Increases

The school will normally increase pay points and allowances for all teachers and leaders in line with the outcomes of the annual school teachers review body (STRB) pay review and the School Teacher's Pay and Conditions Document (STPCD). Where the STPCD allows for any discretion, this will be subject to approval by the Trust Board and in consultation with the CEO and CFO.

1.7 Annual Appraisal/Performance Management

In this Trust all leaders and teachers can expect to receive regular, constructive feedback on their performance and are subject to annual appraisal that recognises their strengths, informs plans for their future development, and helps to enhance their professional practice. The feedback should be timely, clear, and delivered in a respectful and supportive manner. Regular constructive feedback (at least termly) will also include opportunities for the individual to ask questions, seek clarification, and provide their own input and ideas. The arrangements for teacher appraisal are set out in the school's appraisal policy.

1.8 Early Career Teachers

Early Career Teachers (ECTs) starting their induction on or after 1 September 2021 are not subject to annual appraisal and pay review cycles during their induction period (2 years).

Decisions on ECTs' pay will be by means of the statutory induction process for ECTs.

ECTs will be awarded pay progression if they have successfully completed the first year of their induction period.

There is no statutory requirement to award ECTs pay progression on completing their induction. The decision on any pay progression will instead be made:

- With regard to the ECT's performance and their final review
- With regard to the ECT's previous experience, knowledge and skills
- With due regard to the government's expectation that good classroom teachers should expect to reach the maximum of their pay range within 5 years of starting their career teaching

Section 2 PAY PROGRESSION

2.1 Pay Progression

Employees will be awarded pay progression within the Main Pay Range, if available, (not including movement from main scale to upper pay scale) on an annual basis. It is expected that all staff will progress unless significant concerns about standards of performance have been raised throughout the appraisal cycle. Decisions regarding pay progression through the Upper Pay Range will be made with reference to the teachers' performance management/appraisal reports and the criteria as determined by the school.

Final decisions about whether or not to accept a pay recommendation will be made Trust Executive Leaders.

The following groups will be awarded pay progression in accordance with the provisions outlined in this policy.

- lead practitioner teachers
- unqualified teachers
- qualified teachers
- leadership roles

The Trust is committed to ensuring that decisions relating to pay will be fair and transparent, assessments of performance will be properly rooted in evidence. Fairness will be assured by annual monitoring of the application of the pay policy and pay decisions by the Trust Pay Review Panel (see Appendix 1).

A range of evidence will be used including and giving priority to performance management/appraisal process. The evidence we will use to inform appraisals and measure performance will include:

- Pupil Data
- Outcomes within books
- Book Sampling
- Discussions with children
- Professional discussions with staff
- Observations of teaching
- Mentoring and Development Plan discussions
- Performance against the DSAT Career Stage expectations

Where teachers have joined the school part way through a performance management/appraisal cycle, the Executive Headteacher/Headteacher will, where necessary, seek evidence from the previous schools to assist pay decisions and will seek evidence from the teachers themselves. The Trust People Director will be consulted for consistency. The Trust will ensure that appropriate funding is allocated for pay progression for all eligible teachers and leaders in consultation with the CEO and CFO.

Annual performance related pay awards will be backdated to the 1st September in the current academic year.

The school promotes and encourages outstanding performance in its teachers, therefore teachers who demonstrate consistent and sustained performance will have access to progression within their range up to the maximum available point.

2.1.2 Employees who are on maternity leave

Employees who are on maternity leave at any point during the annual cycle of appraisal will have a review meeting with their appraiser to set objectives at the earliest opportunity on their return to school. A range of evidence from the previous cycle and the return to work period will be used to inform pay decisions in line with the criteria determined by the school. Schools are reminded that employees on maternity leave must have their performance assessed and be included in any pay recommendations and any employee within the Main Pay Range will have automatic progression.

2.1.3 Upper Pay Range

A teacher on the upper pay range will be paid a salary within the minimum and maximum of the upper pay range (see Appendix 2). This Trust adopts the advisory pay points for the upper pay range as set out in the STPCD to help support decisions about pay for teachers on the pay range. Teachers do not need to apply for pay progression once they are on the upper pay range but will be expected to meet robust performance targets in order to progress through the range. All decisions relating to annual pay progression within the UPR continue to be based on performance against their annual objectives which will be set in line with DSAT Career Stage Expectations. In the case of progression on the Upper Pay Range, teachers will be awarded progression every 2 years where eligible.

2.2 Appeals

The arrangements for considering appeals with respect to pay are as follows:

A teacher may seek a review of any determination in relation to their pay or any other decision taken by the Trust that affects their pay.

The following list, which is not exhaustive, includes the usual reasons for seeking a review of a pay determination:

That the person or panel by whom the decision was made: -

- a) incorrectly applied any provision of the school's pay policy or STPCD;
- b) failed to have proper regard for statutory regulation or guidance;
- c) failed to take proper account of relevant evidence;
- d) took account of irrelevant or inaccurate evidence;
- e) was biased, or
- f) otherwise unlawfully discriminated against the teacher.

The order of proceedings is as follows:

1. The teacher receives written confirmation of the pay determination and where applicable the basis on which the decision was made.

2. If the teacher is not satisfied, he/she should seek to resolve this by discussing the matter informally with the Head/Headteacher.

3. Where this is not possible or where the teacher continues to be dissatisfied, he/she may make a formal representation to the Trust.

4. The teacher should set down in writing the grounds for questioning the pay decision and send it to the Trust panel who made the determination.

5. The timescale for steps 1 - 4 in this process will be a period of 10 working days from the original decision. Where there is a delay in meeting the individual to discuss the rationale for the decision, the timescale will be extended as appropriate.

6. The Trust Executives or panel who made the determination should provide a hearing, normally within 20 working days of receipt of the written appeal, to consider the representations and give the teacher an opportunity to make representations in person. The employee will be given at least 10 working days notice of the date of the hearing and is entitled to be accompanied by a Trade Union representative or work colleague. Following the hearing the employee should be informed in writing of the decision and the right to appeal.

7. Any appeal should be heard by a panel of three members of the Trust Executive/Local School Board who were not involved in the original determination. The teacher will be given the opportunity to make representations in person. The decision of the appeal panel will be final and will be given in writing, and where the appeal is rejected will include a note of the evidence considered and the reasons for the decision.

Section 3 Movement to the Upper Pay Range

Qualified teachers may apply to be paid on the Upper Pay Range at least once a year in line with this policy. It is the responsibility of the teacher to decide whether or not they wish to apply to be paid on the Upper Pay Range. Applications to be paid on the Upper Pay Range from 1st September must be made in writing to the Headteacher/Head of School before the final date of the appraisal cycle as specified within the school's appraisal policy. A decision will be given to the applicant no later than 31st October.

The Trust will assess any such application received and make a determination, in line with this policy, on whether the teacher meets the criteria for progression;

a) that the teacher is highly competent in all elements of the relevant Teacher standards; and

b) that the teacher's achievements and contribution to an educational setting or settings are substantial and sustained

In this Trust highly competent means:

- The teacher is highly competent in all elements of the relevant standards as set out in the DSAT Career Stage Expectations
- Performance is not only good but it is also good enough to provide coaching and mentoring to other teachers including staff meetings/policies etc.
- Giving other teachers advice and demonstrating effective teaching practice impacting on raising standards
- Makes clear wider contributions to the work of the school in addition to their high quality work in the classroom

Substantial means:

• Consistently plays a critical role in the life of the school

- Provides a role model for teaching and learning and in their personal and professional responsibilities
- Consistently uphold the ethos of the school
- Makes distinctive contribution to the raising of pupil standards
- Takes advantage of appropriate opportunities for professional development and use the outcomes effectively to improve pupils' learning

Sustained means:

• High level performance sustained over at least 2 school years (the most recent)

In making its decision, the Trust will have regard to the two most recent performance management/appraisal reviews and additional evidence to demonstrate the above points. Reviews will be deemed to be successful if the teacher demonstrates that they meet all of the criteria.

Following a successful application to progress to the upper pay range a teacher will normally be placed on the minimum of that range. If the teacher is not successful, they will be given the reasons for this verbally and will have the right to appeal, as above.

All teachers on the Upper Pay Range will have a whole school and/or Trust wide responsibility which will be monitored for impact on a termly basis.

Section 4. Additional Payments/Responsibilities

4.1 Teaching and Learning Responsibility Payments (TLRs)

TLR responsibility payments will be awarded in accordance with the provisions of the STPCD and are at the discretion of the Trust.

A TLR may be awarded to a classroom teacher for undertaking a sustained additional responsibility, in the context of the school's staffing structure, for the purpose of ensuring the continued delivery of high-quality teaching and learning for which the teacher is made accountable. Unqualified teachers may <u>not</u> be awarded a TLR. TLRs are not applicable to anyone paid on the Leadership Pay Range or Executive Pay Range.

The award may be while the teacher remains in the same post or occupies another post in the temporary absence of the post-holder.

For each TLR, an assessment will be made of the level of responsibility in order to establish the value of that TLR within the parameters of the appropriate TLR range (see Appendix 2), in consultation with the Trust.

4.1.1 Criteria for the award of a TLR 2

Before awarding a TLR 2, the Trust must be satisfied that the teacher's duties include a significant responsibility that is not required of all classroom teachers, and that they meet all the following criteria:

a) is focused on teaching and learning;

b) requires the exercise of a teacher's professional skills and judgement;

c) requires the teacher to lead, manage and develop a subject or curriculum area; or to lead and manage pupil development across the curriculum;

d) has an impact on the educational progress of pupils other than the teacher's assigned classes or groups of pupils; and

e) involves leading, developing and enhancing the teaching practice of other staff

4.1.2 Criteria for the award of TLR 3

Where appropriate, the school will make use of the provision for fixed term TLRs (TLR 3). A TLR 3 may be awarded for time-limited school improvement projects or one-off externally driven responsibilities. A TLR 3 will be time-limited (with the duration of the fixed term determined at the outset), with payment made on a monthly basis for the duration of the fixed term. See Appendix 3 for minimum and maximum values.

4.2 SEN Allowance

In this Trust, SEN allowance is payable to any postholder who is on MPR or UPR and who holds the role of SENCo – this role requires a mandatory SEN qualification therefore meets the criteria within the provisions of the STPCD.

Where a SEN allowance is to be paid, the Trust will determine the spot value of the allowance (see Appendix 3) taking into account the structure of the school's SEN provision and the following factors:

(a) the context of the school and the number of SEN pupils with or without EHCPs

- (b) the qualifications or expertise of the teacher relevant to the post; and
- (c) the relative demands of the post

4.3 Recruitment and Retention payments

On occasion we may make such payments or provide such other financial assistance, support or benefits to a member of staff as we consider necessary as an incentive for the recruitment of new staff and the retention in the service of existing staff.

4.4 Employee benefits and methods of recognition

The benefits we offer have been developed to ensure optimum recruitment and retention of staff with a view to maximising staff satisfaction with pay and benefits packages. Employment benefits which we offer include:

- Teacher pension scheme
- Extensive CPD offer and in-house training
- · Health & well-being advice and support
- Flexible working

We are continually assessing our remuneration package and looking at ways to improve our offer to assist existing employees and attract quality applicants.

5.Legislative Framework

When implementing our pay policy, we will abide by:

The <u>Employment Relations Act 1999</u>, which establishes a number of statutory work rights

The <u>Part-time Workers (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations 2000</u> and the <u>Fixed-Term Employees (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations</u> 2002, which require us to ensure part-time and fixed-term workers are treated fairly

The <u>Equality Act 2010</u> which requires schools to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination and advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not share it

The <u>Seven Principles of Public Life</u>, which require those conducting the procedures to be objective, open and accountable

Our procedures for addressing grievances in relation to pay are based on the Acas grievance <u>code of practice</u> and are set out in our staff grievance procedures.

6.Definitions

- **Teacher** includes all staff qualified and appointed to teach at the school. This includes the leadership team and the headteacher, unless otherwise stated
- Teaching and learning responsibility is a payment awarded to a classroom teacher for undertaking a sustained additional responsibility, for the purpose of ensuring the continued delivery of high-quality teaching and learning and for which the teacher is made accountable
- Main and Upper pay ranges are the ranges on which a classroom teacher's salary will be set
- Unqualified teacher pay range is the range on which an unqualified teacher's salary will be set
- Leadership group comprises the headteacher, deputy headteacher and assistant headteacher

Appendix 1 DSAT Performance Pay Process



Appendix 2 – Pay Ranges Including Reference Points from 1st September 2022

Unqualified teachers - pay range including reference points from 1st September 2022

Scale Point	Annual Salary England and Wales (excluding the London Area)
1	£19,340
2	£21,559
3	£23,777
4	£25,733
5	£27,954
6	£30,172

Qualified teachers - main pay range including reference points from 1st September 2022

Scale Point	Annual Salary England and Wales (excluding the London Area)
1	£28,000
2	£29,800
3	£31,750
4	£33,850
5	£35,990
6	£38,810

Upper pay range from 1st September 2022

Scale Point	Annual Salary England and Wales (excluding the London Area)
U1	£40,625
U2	£42,131
U3	£43,685

SEN and TLR Allowances

Values must fall within the following ranges:

Туре	Minimum	Maximum	
SEN	£2,384	£4,703	
TLR 2	£3,017	£7,368	
TLR 3	£600	£2,975	

Pay range for leading practitioners from 1st September 2022

Scale Point	Annual Salary England and Wales (excluding the London Area)
Minimum	£44,523
Maximum	£67,685

Leadership Pay Range from 1st September 2022

Scale Point	Annual Salary
L1	£44,305
L2	£45,414
L3	£46,548
L4	£47,706
L5	£48,895
L6	£50,122
L7	£51,470
L8	£52,659
L9	£53,973
L10	£55,360
L11	£56,796
L12	£58,105
L13	£59,558
L14	£61,042
L15	£62,561
L16	£64,225
L17	£65,699
L18	£67,351
L19	£69,022
L20	£70,733
L21	£72,483
L22	£74,283
L23	£76,122
L24	£78,010